
CC Minutes 05-17-16 

 1 
 2 

City of Washington Terrace 3 

_________________________________________________ 4 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 5 

Held on May 17, 2016 6 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 7 

County of Weber, State of Utah 8 

 9 
 10 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT AT WORK SESSION 11 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 12 

Council Member Scott Monsen  13 

Council Member Blair Brown  14 

Council Member Robert Jensen 15 

Council Member Scott Barker  16 

Council Member Val Shupe 17 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 18 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 19 

City Treasurer Laura Gamon 20 

City Manager Tom Hanson 21 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  22 

 23 

Others Present 24 
Gary Klema 25 

 26 

1. WORK SESSION                                             5:00 P.M. 27 

     PRESENTATION: FY 2016 AMENDED BUDGET, FY 2017 TENTATIVE BUDGET, AND   28 

     FY 2018-2021 BUDGET PLAN 29 
Topics to include, but not limited to: Major Budget Issues:1) Storm water management and compliance; 2) Personnel 30 
requirements; 3) Water Meter System  31 
 32 

Hanson highlighted several major budget issues including: 33 

 34 

Storm Water Compliance 35 
Hanson stated that the city must comply with the same regulations as every city in the State. He 36 

stated that most of the cost is associated with infrastructure, monitoring, and reporting. Hanson 37 

stated that the city will have to monitor contractors and builders in the city to make sure that they 38 

comply with storm water regulations. Hanson stated that the audit report may show an extra 39 

$15,000- $20,000 per year. He stated that the estimated cost for fully operational compliance is 40 

$50,000 per year. Garrett stated that the fee was based on the average residential calculation of 41 

one ERU being 2600 square ft. of impervious service. Hanson cautioned that several neighboring 42 

cities and counties have already been fined and made to comply with regulations. The results of 43 

the audit are still pending. Hanson stated that there are firms that can be contracted for audit 44 

compliance; however, the daily reporting costs will be too high to contract out.  45 

 46 

Water Metering and AMI System 47 
Hanson stated that the new system will improve customer service, increase system efficiencies, 48 

and the Public Works Department Capacity. Hanson noted that there has been failing 49 



CC Minutes 05-17-16 

infrastructure as the meter sets are being installed, confirming that the OTIS II Project will greatly 50 

benefit the residents. Hanson stated that the area is south of 5000. Harris stated that the piping is 51 

being repaired while they work on the meter installs. Harris stated that it is estimated that 650 52 

meters still need to be installed. He stated that the breaks have slowed down the installations. 53 

Garrett stated that the total amount of investment is around $850,000, with a ten to twelve year 54 

life of the meters. She stated that funds will be put aside each year for replacement when the 55 

system begins to fail. 56 

 57 

Personnel Pay Plan 58 
Hanson stated that the pay plan is used to accomplish the goals of the Council. He stated that the pay plan 59 

helps draw in the quality employees needed to accomplish the mission of the city.  Hanson stated that the 60 

city tries to have a competitive pay plan. Hanson stated that most employees wear multiple hats.  Hanson 61 

stated that the city pays below average wage in the area and demands above average performance from 62 

the staff. Hanson stated that the city has brought in over 13 million dollars in grants over the last 14 63 

years. Council Member Brown stated that he does not believe that the city pays below average wages. He 64 

stated that it is fair to say that we pay equal in regards to key personnel and they are treated just as good 65 

as the cities around us. Hanson stated that due to capacity to pay, the city takes the average amount of 66 

wages and lowers it by 10 percent, and also holds 4 percent back for pay for performance. He stated that 67 

the city will lose trained employees if we are too far off track with competitive wages. Hanson stated that 68 

the only employees that will be brought up to the 10 percent below mark are those that are already lower 69 

than 10 percent below. Council Member Monsen stated that the city needs to pay for good people who 70 

are doing good work.  Mayor Allen stated that personnel are very difficult to compare apples to apples. 71 

He stated that other cities may have different employees for positions while our city has several positions 72 

per employee. He stated that the city is doing the same as other cities but with fewer people. Hanson 73 

stated that his intent is to retain and recruit the best employees for the residents. Hanson stated that not all 74 

employees will see an adjustment this year. He stated that staff is very professional. Council Member 75 

Brown stated that social security has stated that there are no cost of living increases this year. He stated 76 

that he would like to vote the way the citizens would like to have it. He stated that he has a hard time 77 

explaining increases to residents who are living on pensions and social security. Hanson explained that 78 

not every employee will receive an increase. Council Member Shupe stated that that the pensioners and 79 

people that are on social security received increases while they were working. He stated that he himself is 80 

on social security. He stated that employees are entitled to increases that are due to them and should not 81 

be penalized because people on pension and social security are not receiving cost of living increases. 82 

Council Member Barker stated that it is a competition out there and if we do not have competitive wages, 83 

we will lose employees to other cities and businesses. 84 

Council Member Jensen stated that he is encouraged by the plan and how it has been handled in the last 85 

few years. Hanson stated that it is up to the manager as to whether an employee receives the increase if 86 

they are due an increase. Hanson stated that the city is fortunate to have high capacity employees. 87 

Council Member Shupe stated that there must be a balance between performance criteria and the quality 88 

of performance of the employee. He noted that it makes him wonder about the qualifications of the 89 

employees if there are only a few applications to choose from.  90 

Hanson asked if Council is good moving forward as to what is presented in the budget. Council agreed 91 

that they were. Hanson noted that if there are specific areas that Council does not agree with, they can 92 

notate that when they approve the budget while still passing the budget. 93 

 94 

 95 

 96 

 97 
 98 



CC Minutes 05-17-16 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  99 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 100 

Council Member Scott Monsen  101 

Council Member Blair Brown  102 

Council Member Robert Jensen 103 

Council Member Scott Barker  104 

Council Member Val Shupe 105 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 106 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 107 

City Manager Tom Hanson 108 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  109 

 110 

Others Present 111 
Charles and Reva Allen, Gary Klema 112 
   113 

2.     ROLL CALL                                                  6:00 P.M. 114 

 115 

3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 116 

 117 

4.     WELCOME 118 

 119 

5.     CONSENT ITEMS 120 

 121 

5.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 122 

       5.2  APPROVAL OF MAY 3, 2016, MINUTES 123 
Items 5.1 and 5.2 were approved by general consent. 124 

 125 

6.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 126 
There were no citizen comments. 127 

 128 

7.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 129 

       COMMENTS 130 
Due to lack of citizen comments in item 6, item 7 is unnecessary. 131 

 132 

8.     NEW BUSINESS            133 
 134 
       8.1  PRESENTATION: FY 2016 AMENDED BUDGET, FY 2017 TENTATIVE BUDGET,  135 

           AND FY 2018-2021 BUDGET PLAN 136 
Hanson stated that Council has held discussions on the 6 major budget items include: Public Works 137 

Facility, Water Meter installments, Storm Water Regulations impacts, Redevelopment area, and 138 

Personnel. 139 

He stated that the Redevelopment Project areas will be discussed in the RDA meeting. Hanson stated that 140 

the balanced budget as presented is based on the ability to pay. He stated that the budget document shows 141 

the policies and procedures of the city that are used to accomplish the Council’s goals as directly and 142 

high efficiently as possible.  Mayor Allen thanked Hanson and staff on their work on the complex 143 

budget and explanations and discussions with Council. 144 
 145 

9.     SPECIAL ORDER       146 

      9.1    PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2016  147 

   AMENDED BUDGET, FISCAL YEAR 2017 TENTATIVE BUDGET, AND    148 



CC Minutes 05-17-16 

   2018-2021 BUDGET PLAN 149 
Hanson stated that the city has presented a multi-year balanced plan. He stated that a multi-year plan is a 150 

benefit to the city. 151 

Hanson stated that the budget will be voted on by Council on June 21, 2016. 152 

 153 

Mayor Allen opened the public hearing at 6:15 p.m. 154 
There were no citizen comments. 155 

Mayor Allen closed the public hearing at 6:16 p.m. 156 

 157 

10.     NEW BUSINESS- CONTINUED      158 
  159 
      10.1   MOTION/RESOLUTION 16-07: A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CIVIL RIGHTS 160 

             POLICY 161 
Hanson explained that the city must comply with the requirements from HUD regarding Civil  162 

Rights in order to receive federal funding . Rodriguez stated that the Resolution  163 

Encompasses 4 plans, to include the Language Access Plan, the Grievance Procedure Plan, the ADA  164 

Effective Communication Plan, and the ADA Reasonable Accommodation Plan. These plans assist  165 

with helping those who need ADA accommodations. Rodriguez noted that aside from the LAP  166 

plan, the city already provides for these accommodations and the resolution is just making it more  167 

formal. 168 

Motion by Council Member Monsen 169 

Seconded by Council Member Barker 170 

To approve Resolution 16-07 to 171 

Adopt a civil rights policy 172 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 173 

Roll Call Vote   174 

 175 

     10.2   MOTION: APPROVAL OF PLEASANT VALLEY RANCH LAND PURCHASE 176 

             AGREEMENT 177 
Hanson stated that agreement will allow the city to secure the finances for the land purchase for  178 

the public works shops by December 1st. Hanson stated that Pleasant Valley Ranch has been  179 

helpful in working with the city on the language in the document. Hanson stated that the agreement  180 

protects the city and also has language concerning the toll road. He stated that the language  181 

includes a clause that if there was ever a point that the toll road would become an open road,  182 

the city can work with the state or county to help make that happen. 183 

Hanson stated that Mr. Stephens has approved the clean version and is ready to sign the  184 

agreement. Council member Monsen asked to be part of the review of the sellers disclosures when  185 

they come in. 186 

Hanson clarified that $150,000 is set aside for design and planning. The entire purchase of the land 187 

will be tied into the purchase of the whole project. A financial advisor will be brought in to help  188 

discuss how to bundle the project. 189 
  190 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 191 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 192 

To approve the land purchase agreement with Pleasant Valley Ranch 193 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 194 

       195 
 196 
11.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 197 

* Council Member Brown stated that staff did a nice job on repairing the sinkholes. Hanson asked   198 



CC Minutes 05-17-16 

  Council to let him know of any divots that they may see in the streets. 199 

 200 
* Council Member Shupe asked if any striping is scheduled at Rohmer Park. Hanson stated that the 201 

striping is scheduled.  Council Member Shupe noted that the lower lot parking area is getting 202 

congested with people parking along the fence line. He stated that cars are being boxed in and it 203 

would be difficult to get fire or safety vehicles in the area during an emergency. He asked that the 204 

Sheriff deputies patrol the lower lot. 205 

       206 

12.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 207 
-   Council Member Brown stated that he will be Master of Ceremony for the Dog Parade. 208 

-   Council Member Monsen stated that he likes the golf carts for Council to ride in during the parade. 209 

-   Council Member Shupe suggested Bonnie and Dave Jacobs to serve as Grand Marshalls.  210 

    Council agreed and Council Member Shupe will contact them. 211 

-   Hanson stated that another vehicle has been sold. He stated that there are a few more vehicles  212 

    to be sold for this fleet policy cycle. 213 

-   Mayor Allen stated the Lions Club may be the sponsor for the movie in the park. 214 

-   Hanson stated that 87 meters were installed last week.  215 

-   Hanson stated that the city is working with property owners to take care of the weeds at the  216 

    real estate building and America First lots. 217 

-   Hanson stated that a cubs scout group has asked to visit with a Council Member on May 31st .  218 

    Council Member Monsen stated that he will be happy to do it if he is available that night.  219 

    Council Member Brown stated that will be back up for if Council Member Monsen is  220 

    unavailable. 221 

-   Hanson stated that the public works facility open house is next Tuesday night. 222 

-   Hanson stated that the city recognizes the weed and carport issue at the home at 161 E 4600 S 223 

    And is working with the real estate company to take care of the problem. 224 

    Hanson stated that there is a tour at Weber Basin on June 15th and will need RSVP’s by June  225 

    1st for those who would like to attend. 226 

 227 

13.     UPCOMING EVENTS    228 
         May 24th: Public Works Shop Open House  6:00 p.m. 229 
         May 26th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 230 
         May 30th: City offices closed for Memorial Day Observance 231 
         June 7th: City Council Work Session 5:00 p.m. 232 
         June 7th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 233 
 234 
14.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  235 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 6:52 p.m. 236 

 237 

15.    RDA MEETING  (Immediately following regular Council Meeting) 238 

 239 

 240 

________________________________                 __________________________ 241 

Date Approved                                        City Recorder 242 
          243 


